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0
1 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
2 BEFORE THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

3 -------------x
:

4 In the Matter of :
:

5 ILLINOIS POWER COMPANY : Docket No.
:

6 Clinton Unit 1 : 50-4610L
:

7 -------------x
8

9 Plaza Room

10 University Inn

11 3rd and James Streets,

12 Urbana, Illinois

13 Thursday, June 2, 1983

14

15 The prehearing conference in the above-entitled

16 matter convened, pursuant to notice, at 9: 00 A. M.

17 BEFORE:

| 18 HUGH K. CLARK, Chairman,
,

19 Administrative Judge

20 GEORGE A. FERGUSON, Member

21 Administrative Judge

22 OSCAR H. PARIS, Member

23 Administrative Judge

24
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9 On behalf of the Regulatory Staff:
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11 Bethesda, Maryland

13 On behalf of Intervenor,

14 State of Illinois:
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17 Chicago, Illinois

18

19 On behalf of Intervenor,

20 Prairie Alliance:

21 JEAN F0Y
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O
1 JUDGE CLARK: Good morning, ladies and

2 gentlemen.

3 I'd like to welcome each and every one of you to

4 this conference.

5 This is the fourth special prehearing conference in

6 a proceeding concerning the application of Illinois

7 Power Company, et al., for a license to operate the

8 Clinton Nuclear Plant, Station No. 1.

9 It's been quite awhile since we had a prehearing
,

10 conference, and there may be some of you here who were

11 not at the last conference.

7-~)
,

( 12 I shall give a little background information which

13 will assist those present in understanding this

14 conference.

15 The parties to this proceeding are the Applicant,

16 Illinois Power Company, et al; the Nuclear Regulatory

17 Commission Staff; the Intervenor, Prairie Alliance, and

18 the State of Illinois.

19 At a special prehearing conference held on May the

20 24th, 1982, counsel for the Applicant stated that the
|

21 target date for fuel loading of Clinton 1 was

22 approximately January, 1984.

23 An evidentiary hearing was scheduled for August the

'

24 15th, 1983, so that the Board could give its decision in
O

; \m,/ 25 time to meet this target, if a decision found that the
l
!
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1 requested license should be granted.
.

2 Since that time, the Board is aware that the

3 Applicant has been delayed in its construction program.

4 By a letter dated April the 25th, 1983, counsel for !

5 the Applicant notified the Board and the parties that he

6 would endeavor to inform the Board and the parties of

7 developments pertinent to this proceeding by the end of |

8 May.

9 The Board, by its order of May 6, 1983, scheduled
,

10 this special prehearing conference for the purpose of

11 assessing the progress of the proceeding to date and

() 12 planning for the future.

13 By a letter dated May the 24th, 1983, counsel for

14 Applicants advised members of this Board and

15 representatives of the parties that the Applicants

16 would, on that day, announce the fuel loading date for

17 the Clinton Plant 1, which has been revised from from

| 18 January, 1984, to January, 1986.

19 This special prehearing conference will seek to

20 schedule further steps in this proceeding in the light

21 of developments since the previous special prehearing

22 conference held on May 4, 1982.

23 In order that the reporter may have an accurate

| 24 record, I shall first introduce the members of this

!(l 25 Board and then ask representatives of the parties to

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 introduce themselves.

2 I am Hugh K. Clark, a lawyer and the Chairman of

3 the Board.

4 Judge George A. Ferguson, on my left, is a nuclear

5 engineer; and Judge Oscar H. Paris, on my right, is an

6 environment scientist.

7 Each of my colleagues is outstanding in his field,

8 bringing to this proceeding a wealth of ability and

9 experience.
,

10 We are fortunate in having these eminent gentlenen

11 on this Board.

() '

12 I will now ask counsel for the Staff, Mr. Goddard,

13 to introduce himself and other Staff members with him.

14 MR. GODDARD: Thank you, Judge Clark.

15 My name is Richard J. Goddard, Office of the

16 Executive Legal Director, United States Nuclear

17 Regulatory Commission, located in Bethesda, Maryland. I

18 am counsel for the NRC Staff.

19 On my immediate left is Mr. Harvey Abelson of the

20 Division of Licensing, who is the NRC Staff Project

21 Manager in this case.

22 Opposite me is Mr. Herbert H. Livermore, Senior

23 Resident Inspector of the United States Nuclear

24 Regulatory Commission for the Clinton Station.

25 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Mr. Goddard.

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 The counsel for the Applicants is Mr. Zabel.

2 Mr. Zabel, please introduce yourself and those with

3 you.

4 MR. ZABEL: Thank you, Judge.

5 I'm Sheldon A. Zabel. With me is Charles D. Fox,

6 IV, the law firm of Schiff, Hardin & Waite, representing

7 the Applicant.

8 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Mr. Zabel.

9 When we last met, the Intervenors were represented

10 by counsel, but he has withdrawn from the case, and Miss

11 Foy has been appointed a representative for Prairie

() 12 Alliance, the Intervenor.

13 Miss Foy, please introduce yourself and other

14 members of Prairie Alliance t'ith you.

15 MS. F0Y: My nsie is Jean Foy and with me is
.

,

16 Midge O'Brien, another member of Prairie Alliance.

17 JUDGE CLARK: The lady with you?

18 MS. F0Y: Midge O'Brien.

19 JUDGE CLARK: Miss O'Brien.

20 Thank you.

21 Mr. Willman, will the gentlemen appearing on behalf

22 of the State of Illinois please introduce themselves.

23 MR. WILLMAN: Yes, your Honor.

24 Seated to my left is Greg Minor, a consultant with

() 25 MHB Consultants in San Jose, California.

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

2 I shall list some topics which will be discussed

3 here today, and when these topics have been completed or

4 at some other appropriate time, if there are other

5 topics which are pertinent to the purpose of this

6 meeting, they will also be dealt with.

7 The parties will discuss:

8 1. The status of negotiations between the parties

9 on Contentions;
,

10 2. Applicant's evaluation of construction

11 schedule;

12 3. Actions being taken to assure adequate quality

13 assurance and quality control programs.

14 Mr. Goddard, do you wish to report on the status of

15 negotiations between the parties as to the Contentions?

16 MR. GODDARD: Yes, sir.

17 I will take these in the order of the most recent

18 negotiations.

| 19 The NRC Staff has provided considerable

20 information, to include documents and affidavits of NRC

21 Staff reviewers, with regard to the Prairie Alliance

,
22 Contentions IV and V.

l

23 These are the Contentions dealing with ECCS, core

' 24 spray and the Contention dealing with the effects of

25 low-level radiation.

|
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V('h.

1 Negotiations and requests for additional

2 information and review by the Staff are continuing with

3 regard to each of these Contentions.

4 With regard to the Prairie Alliance Contention I,

5 Emergency Planning, I spoke to Miss Foy this morning,

6 and she's indicated they would like to have a meeting

7 with the Staff and Applicant with regard to narrowing

8 some of the issues which are set forth as subparts under

9 that Contention, inasmuch as a recent amendment to the

10 FSAR by the Applicant -- I believe it was Amendment 17

11 or 18 -- resulted in the provision of information which

() 12 would, in effect, eliminate many of the subparts of that

13 Contention.

14 The material which has been provided just was

15 absent from the record in the earlier version of the

16 FSAR.

17 JUDGE CLARK: I see.

18 MR. GODDARD: I have spoken to Mr. Zabel, and

19 we are going to prepare some documentary package or

20 presentation, present that to the Prairie Alliance and,

21 of course, the State of Illinois, and arrange for a

22 meeting some time later this summer; hopefully, not too

23 much later this summer.

24 JUDGE CLARK: I see.

O)\s , 25 MR. GODDARD: As to Contention II, there are no

|

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 negotiations in progress at this time, that being the

2 Contention dealing with quality assurance, quality

3 control.

4 I think I omitted one Contention, which would be

5 Prairie Alliance Contention No. III as renumbered, and

6 that is the Contention which was formerly Prairie

7 Alliance Contention VI, dealing with many aspects of the

8 Clinton Station control room.

9 The State of Illinois has recently served a request
,

10 on us for information with regard to the subparts of

11 that Contention in the nature of informal discovery.

() 12 We have provided Illinois with what we consider to

13 be a rather exhaustive collection of documents from the

14 docket as well as affidavits of Staff reviewers who

15 would be the witnesses on each of those subparts of the

16 Contention if it were, in fact, brought to hearing.

17 I'm quite sure Illinois has not had a chance to

18 review those at this time.

19 Accordingly, all I can say is that the negotiations

20 on the various subparts of that Contention are

21 continuing.

22 Contention VI at this point is pending before the

23 Board as to a motion for summary disposition of that

24 Contention by the Applicant, which was supported by the

25 Staff and opposed by the Alliance.
,

, . . ,

,

r
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1 JUDGE CLARK: The Board will deal with that

2 .later today.

3 MR. GODDARD: Thank you.

4 That concludes my comments, unless the Board has

5 any specific questions.

6 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

7 Mr. Zabel, do you have anything to add to that?

8 MR. ZABEL: I think noc, your Honor. Mr.

9 Goddard's explanation of the negotiations to date has
,

10 been thorough.

11 We certainly would join, as he indicated, in

() 12 discussions on narrowing Contention No. I.

13 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

14 Miss Foy, do you have any comments to make?

15 MS. F0Y: No. He said what we had spoken about

16 with him.

17 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

18 State of Illinois?

19 MR. WILLMAN: I will just add one comment.

20 We had receive the documents, that Mr. Goddard

1!1 referred to, on May 27th of last week, so we haven't had

22 a chance to review those documents, but we intend to,

23 and we will proceed with negotiations on those

24 Contentions.

() 25 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

|
--
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0
1 Mr. Zabel, do you want to discuss Applicant's

'

2 evaluation of the construction schedule?

3 MR. ZABEL: Yes, your Honor.

4 As you've already indicated, they have announced a

5 two-year delay in the scheduled fuel date, from January

6 of 1984 to January of 1986.

7 The primary reasons for that, I think, your Honor,

8 relate, in part, to Item 3 of this Board's order, which

9 is the QA/QC question.
,

10 I'd be happy to review the status of that now, or

11 if you would rather wait until we got to those items,

() 12 because the two are very much interrelated.

13 JUDGE CLARK: Well, I think you may proceed.

14 MR. ZABEL: All right. Thank you, your Honor.

15 Two primary reasons were announced for this

16 two-year extension, one of which was necessary changes

17 to be reviewed 1? NRC requirements, and the problems.

18 encountered in the QA/QC at the plant.

19 Specifically, there have been 10 stop-work orders

| 20 issued on various aspects of the construction that's

21 going on at this plant.

22 I can summarize each of those very briefly, as it
|
'

23 may be of some interest to the Board and the people who

24 are here.

O(
| % ,/ 25 The first of these was issued in January of 1982,
|

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 which stopped installation of electrical cable tray and

2 tray attachments.

3 It is estimated by the Applicant that this

4 stop-work order, which is still in place, would be

5 lifted some time in June of this year.

6 The second stop-work order that was issued was in

7 February of 1982, which stopped all work on the drywell.

8 With the concurrence of the NRC Region, that

9 stop-work order was lifted on May 19th of this year,

10 this last month.

11 The third stop-work order, issued in June of 1982,

() 12 stopped all safety-related work of the Zack Company.

13 That stop-work order has not yet been lifted, but

14 we are estimating that it will be lifted in August of

15 this year.

16 The fourth which was issued, also in June of this

| 17 last year, stopped all integral attachment of hangers

18 classified as seismic to the building structure.

19 We are again estimating lif ting of that stop-work
l

| 20 order in August of this year.

I
21 The next stop-work order, again issued in June of

22 last year, stopped all new conduit installation.

23 In the recovery scheduling that the company has

24 prepared, their estimate is that will be lifted July 1st

() 25 of this year.

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 The next stop-work order, again in June of last

2 year, stopped all electrical equipment installation, and

3 on May 19th, just a couple weeks ago, with the

4 concurrence of the NRC, that stop-work order was lifted.

5 Again, a stop-work order, issued in June of last

u year, stopped all containment structural steel

7 installation. That stop-work order is still in place.

8 We are estimating that it will be lifted in July of

9 this year.
-.

10 The ninth stop-work order was issued early in

11 August of 1982. It stopped all heating, ventilating and

() '

12 air conditioning work performed in plant structures

13 classified as Category 1.

14 That stop-work order also is still in place; and,

15 again, we estimate that it will be lifted -- we hope to

16 have it lifted in August of this year.

17 The final one was issued in March of last year,

18 which stopped procurement of spare parts requisition by

19 the Applicant.

20 That was lifted on April 28th of this year.

21 Now, just as a particular example, the first one I

22 mentioned, which concerned the installation of

23 electrical cable try and tray attachments, which was

24 issued in January of 1982, we're estimating lifting of

() 25 that in June of this year. That's approximately 18

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 months not being able to do that physical work on the

2 site, your Honor.

3 That's why I had indicated the interrelationship

4 between those two items on your list.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Mr. Zabel.

6 Mr. Goddard, do you or your associates wish to

7 comment on this exposition?

8 MR. GODDARD: If I may have a moment.

9 The Staff has no comment and is quite satisfied

10 with Mr. Zabel's presentation.

11 JUDGE CLARK: Judge Paris has some questions

() 12 he'd like to ask.

13 JUDGE PARIS: Mr. Zabel, what is the

14 safety-related work that the Zack Company has been

15 performing?

16 MR. ZABEL: My understanding is that's heating,

17 ventilating and air conditioning work related, your

18 Honor.

19 I can verify that for you.

l 20 JUDGE PARIS: The structural steel
l

21 installations on containment, did that relate to the

! 22 welding rod problem?

| 23 MR. ZABEL: I don't think that was the welding

24 rod problem.

() 25 I think the welding rod problem, in my recollection - -

I

o-
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1 I certainly would like to verify this with technical

2 staff -- was addressed and resolved earlier on. This is

3 not the welding rod problem per se.

4 JUDGE PARIS: When you say " earlier on," what

5 do you mean?

6 MR. ZABEL: Well, there was an occasion, I

7 think, in 1982, your Honor, where they discovered either

8 improperly labeled or improper quality welding rods.

9 JUDGE PARIS: That's not in this list.
,

10 MR. ZABEL: I think, your Honor, that's been

11 resolved, but I can check that.

() 12 JUDGE PARIS: All right, fine.

13 JUDGE CLARK: Do you have any more questions?

14 JUDGE PARIS: No. I think that's all.

15 JUDGE CLARK: George?

16 JUDGE FERGUSON: Let me pick up on questions

17 that have just been asked.

18 Mr. Zabel, could you share with us anything that

19 might be helpful to the Board that would reflect upon

20 your company's change in policy, if, in fact, there has

21 been any change, that would lead to this, as you said,

22 you expect the stop-work orders to be lifted, some in

23 July, some in August, of this year and so forth?

.

24 I'm asking for a statement, if it is possible for

s~s 25 you to give one, that would reflect any changes in

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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O
1 policy of your company that would result in, perhaps, no

2 further stop-work orders and perhaps an increase in the

3 QA/QC program for this plant.

4 Is my question clear?

5 MR. ZABEL: I think in some areas -- and I can

6 respond to that in somewhat of a generic fashion --

7 there has been, in my view, a major change in -- I don't

8 know that I would use the policy as the term, but
,

9 certainly an emphasis on QA/QC, a major revision of that
,

10 program.

11 This plant's construction company's brought in

() 12 another consu. tant, Dunn & Webster, to assist them in

13 the construction of this plant, to assist them in QA/QC.

14 They have changed various personnel on the site and

15 placed, I think it's fair to say, a very strong

16 re-emphasis on the quality assurance / quality control

17 aspect of constructing this nuclear power plant.

18 There have been extensive discussions -- in a

19 sense, I would defer to the NRC Region on this, but I

20 certainly would mention it because they are the most
1

21 immediate oversight of the construction of the plant and

22 on the QA/QC,
,

:

| 23 In extensive discussions with the Region 3 Staff,

24 recovery plans have been developed, which are, in some

() 25 cases, rather extensive, massive almost documents, your

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 Honor, to reorganize QA/QC, to provide for the kinds of

2 rechecks of things that had been done, the kinds of

3 inspections and checks of future work to be done, to

4 assure both the company and the Applicant and the NRC

5 Staff that those things have been done properly.

6 This has gone on for well over a year, obviously,

7 from the first stop-work order, and in that program,

8 both in changing the QA/QC and in the recovery program

9 to get the construction work back under way, the

10 stop-work orders lifted, has certainly been a major

11 re-emphasis on this kind of problem.

() 12 JUDGE FERGUSON: Just one final short question.

13 You have projected some dates in which stop-work

14 orders may be lifted.

15 What's the basis for those projections?

16 MR. ZABEL: Those are part of the company's

17 estimate and I think part of the recovery plan submitted

18 to the Region 3 NRC Staff of when the problems that

19 caused the stop-work order could be corrected, whenever

20 re-inspections were necessary as a result of those

21 stop-work orders could be completed, so that future work;

|
| 22 or rework, if that proves necessary in some cases, could

23 be done with adequate QA/QC to satisfy the Regional

24 Staff and to satisfy the Applicant.
,

! x_/ 25 I would add, try to emphasize, your Honor, that the

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 Applicants, too, were not satisfied with the QA/QC.

2 Some of these stop-work orders were put in place as

3 much at the Applicant's request, if you will, as of the

4 NRC Staff, because they, too, recognized that this

5 problem was developing and had to be corrected.

6 JUDGE FERGUSON: Thank you, Mr. Zabel.

7 JUDGE CLARK: Mr. Goddard, would you or Mr.

8 Abelson like to comment on the extent to which these

9 revisions in the QA/QC program and the details of it

10 have been made available in the public documents room?

11 MR. GODDARD: After having spoken with Mr.

() 12 Abelson, it's my understanding that a pending amendment

13 to the FSAR will contain in full the changes to the

14 Illinois Power quality assurance program.

15 The Staff has sent a number of questions to the

16 Applicant in this case dealing with quality assurance.

17 All of those requests are documented matter and are

18 available, both in the PDR and in the local public

19 documents room.

20 To the extent that there are meeting summaries or

21 documents which have been formalized by Illinois Power
|

| 22 and presented at meetings, public meetings, involving

23 the quality recovery program of the company, which were

24 held at the Region 3 offices subsequent to our last

(._- 25 special prehearing conference, those, again, would be
'

|
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1 available in the public document rooms of the

2 Commission.

3 JUDGE CLARK: Well, what data would not be

4 available that would be pertinent to one, such as an

5 intervenor, who wished to get an accurate and overall

6 picture of what's been going on?

7 MR. GODDARD: Nothing, to my knowledge.
~

8 JUDGE CLARK: In other words, in your opinion,

9 the documents which are now available would enable an
,

10 intervenor to get a pretty complete picture of what's

11 been going on in the QA/QC program?

() 12 MR. GODDARD: The documents which are, and

13 which are soon to be available --

14 JUDGE CLARK: I see.

15 MR. GODDARD: -- referencing the FSAR proposed

16 amendment.

17 On each of these stop works, of course, the

18 documentation which led to those and the Applicant's

19 documented resolutions or attempts to resolve those

20 issues are documented matter.

21 JUDGE CLARK: Speaking more generally now, do

22 you have anything to add to Mr. Zabel's resume or do you

23 disagree with him on any of the points of which he

24 spoke?
O
( ,/ 25 MR. GODDARD: No, sir.

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 I have no knowledge of the derivation of the

2 projected dates for the lifting of the various stop-work

3 orders.

4 I think Mr. Zabel explained that issue.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Would Mr. Abelson have any

6 knowledge on that?

7 MR. ABELSON: No, sir.

8 JUDGE CLARK: How about your third gentlemen,

9 is that Rivermore?
.

10 MR. LIVERMORE: Livermore, L-i-y-e-r.

11 JUDGE CLARK: Oh, it's like the laboratory?

() 12 MR. LIVERMORE: Yes.

13 JUDGE CLARK: Do you have any comments?

14 MR. LIVERMORE: No, I don't, sir.

15 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

16 Would counsel for the State have any questions that

17 he would like to ask with regard to this, the statement

18 that's been made?

19 MR. WILLMAN: I have a question that I'd like

20 to pose to the NRC Staff.

21 I don't know if this is the appropriate --

22 JUDGE CLARK: Suppose you pose it to me, and if

23 I want the Staff to answer, I will tell them to.

24 MR. WILLMAN: That is, whether the Staff is

) 25 planning to issue a supplementary SER in this area in

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 response to the FSAR amendment.

2 JUDGE CLARK: Can you answer that question, Mr.

3 Goddard?

4 MR. GODDARD: Yes.

5 Tuesday of this week the NRC Staff published a

6 Supplement No. 2 to the Safety Evaluation Report.

7 This will be served on all parties early next week.

8 That supplement, however, does not contain any

9 update with regard to the quality assurance area.
,

10 To the extent that QA, of course, is an open or

11 confirmatory item at this point, subsequent supplements

() 12 will deal with that issue.

13 We cannot provide you a date as to when such might

14 be issued.

15 JUDGE CLARK: I understand that you don't

16 attempt to gusrantee the dates which Mr. Zabel has

17 mentioned as goals.

18 Would you feel free to suggest some date where at

19 least most of these goals might reasonably be expected

20 to be met in the view of the Staff, not taking any

21 particular one, but just the bulk of them?

22 MR. GODDARD: From my discussions with members

23 of the NRC Staff, I think it would be a fair assumption

24 that the majority of those stop-work orders will be

) 25 lifted within the next three to six months, perhaps all

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 of them, but further than that, I really can't provide

2 an answer.

3 JUDGE CLARK: In other words, you are

4 suggesting, perhaps, that it will be close to the end of

5 this year before we can confidently look to having all

6 of these raised, perhaps, or most of them?

7 MR. GODDARD: It's possible.

8 As I say, they are not ready for resolution at this

9 time or they would have been lifted.

10 The company, to the best of my knowledge, is making

11 good progress in this area.

()'

12 JUDGE CLARK: Well, one of the things I'm

13 trying to find out -- perhaps I haven't phrased the

14 right questions -- as to a certain portion of these

15 stop-work orders, as I now understand it, those which

16 have been lifted, the documentation is available in the

17 public documents room; is that correct?

18 MR. GODDARD: That would be correct.

19 JUDGE CLARK: As to the ones which have not yet

20 be lifted, the documentation will not be available until

21 they have been lifted and the documents have been put in

22 the public documents room?

23 MR. GODDARD: Yes, sir.

24 MR. ZABEL: If I may, your Honor.

() 25 I don't think that's -- I mean, that's in part

,

j SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
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1 true; but to the extent that the Applicant's recovery

2 plan addressed items that have not yet been lifted --

3 and those documents were formally submitted to the NRC --

4 from Applicant's perspective, that much of it, at least,

5 at this point, even on the ones that have not been

6 lifted, are in the public documents room.

7 There may be additional documents on those issues

8 that don't exist yet, so they are not there.

9 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Mr. Zabel.
,

10 What I'm trying, really, to find out, to get to the

11 root of, the State of Illinois has been interested in

'

12 making some searches of the Applicant's documents in the

13 QA/QC program, and this was dt.scussed May of last year,

14 and one of the things that came out of the discussion

15 was the fact that there was a huge mass of documents

16 which had to do with minor infractions of the QA/QC

17 program that were reviewed by people in, let us say,

18 middle management or below and not reviewed individually

19 by higher msnagement, and we really came down to a

20 question as to whether or not the Intervenors, the State

21 of Illinois, either, would find it profitable to go

i 22 through these massive documents to ferret out

23 significant matters; and this question is going to come

24 up before us again before the day is out.
|

| 0
| 'd 25 The thing I'm trying to get at is: These matters
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1 which are significant, if tne State of Illinois were

2 given the right to have access to documents which are

3 now available in these matters which are not settled,

4 but which are not in the public documents room, would it

5 really help them to see the picture or would they be

6 able to see the picture more clearly when the additional

7 documents are available?

8 In other words, is the picture on these things so

9 clouded now that a review of documents in the
.

10 Applicant's possession, but not available to the public,

11 would help them to really understand what's going on and

() 12 make some decisions with regard thereto?

13 Maybe I'm asking you too much.

14 MR. ZABEL: I don't know quite how to respond

15 to that, your Honor. Maybe it is too much.

16 On the letter that Mr. Willman wrote, we certainly

17 have an obligation of continuing production, continuing

18 response, and -- well, that wasn't the specific issue

19 you were raising at.this point.

20 I'm certainly content and willing to say today that

21 we will work out, under that obligation and NRC

22 regulations, to allow him to examine those documents in

23 the company's offices, responsive to his prior discovery

24 request, that have not been produced previously because

q_) 25 they didn't exist.

s
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1 I have forgotten the exact date of the last time

2 the Attorney General's office looked at those documents,

3 but it was well over a year ago, and the last specific

4 date in the record is November of 1981, I think.

5 So there would be a good deal of documentation

6 developed in this area, obviously, in the company's

7 records that we're obligated to produce under his prior

8 discovery request.

9 What I cannot answer for you, your Honor, and I
,

10 don't know that Mr. Willman could, either, is how

11 helpful that will be to him in his approach to the

12 Contention. That's really not my judgment to make.

13 JUDGE CLARK: What you are saying: They are

14 available to him, if he wishes to look at them?

15 MR. ZABEL: We'd be happy to work out a

.

16 schedule, es he has in the past, to come down and look
i

17 at that subsequent documentation that's responsive,

18 that's been developed since the last date.

19 JUDGE CLARK: In light of what has been said --

20 and I'm jumping around on my program a little bit -- we

|
21 have your motion for a right to open discovery in this

22 area.

23 Has what has been said indicated to you that what

i 24 you need is available or will be made available?

25 HR. WILLMAN: If I understand Mr. Zabel, yes,

!

SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.

. - . . . _ . - - - - - . . _ - - . - - - _ .



_

397

O
1 it is going to be-available.

2 If we can set up some sort of scheduling for

3 reviewing subsequent documents, then we would be

4 satisfied with that.

5 I presume you are talking about some sort of formal

6 discovery schedule?

7 MR. ZABEL: Well, I don't know how formal we

8 need to be.

9 I think maybe we have not communicated well the
,

10 past year, except early on, with the Attorney General in

11 this matter.

() 12 As I say, we have a continuing obligation.

13 We have not talked to Mr. Willman and said, "When

14 would you like to come down to look at these new

15 documents?"

16 We'd like a little time, obviously, to organize,

17 get ready for him, as we have in every past discovery

18 response, but I'm perfectly willing to sit down with him

19 today and say, "When would you like to come down? Let's

20 see if we can arrange a convenient day," because we have

21 that continuing obligation, and I must say, so do the

22 Intervenors on our discovery request, but I expect we

23 have a far more voluminous number of documents to look

24 at than they do.
,

\ _) 25 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.s
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1 MR. GODDARD: Excuse me, Judge Clark.

2 The Staff would like to clarify one of its earlier

3 answers with regard to the contents of future

4 supplements to the Staff Safety Evaluation Report.

5 Those supplements will not discuss matters such as

6 the stop works that have been in effect and the

7 resolution of them, except insofar as it may bear on the

8 QA program for the operation of Clinton Station.

9 To the extent that these quality assurance matters
,

10 are arising under the construction quality assurance

11 program, they will not be discussed in future

() 12 supplements.

13 JUDGE CLARK: I see.

14 Mr. Zabel, has the Applicant also revised QA/QC

15 programs for operations or have they found that they

16 don't consider that necessary?

17 MR. ZABEL: I must say, your Honor, I'd have to

18 check on that. I don't recall.

19 The most immediate thing, which seemed to get the

| 20 most immediate attention, were these stop-work orders.

21 They were first in line, if you will.

22 JUDGE CLARK: I understand.

23 Well, I wonder if, at this stage, is it the QA/QC

24 program construction that's of major interest to you or

25 during operations?

|
!
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1 MR. WILLMAN: I think, as the Contention reads,

2 it is the allegation of the deficiencies in the

3 construction program that we're interested in, and then

4 the question becomes, "How do those deficiencies reflect

5 on the quality assurance program for operation of the

6 plant?"

7 JUDGE CLARK: I see.

8 Well, now, in order that this motion of yours shal.

9 not remain in the record unanswered, I would like you to
,

10 consider whether you would like to withdraw that motion

11 without prejudice to filing a motion at a later date, if

() 12 the Applicant is not cooperative, in your opinion.

13 Wouldeyou consider doing that?

14 MR. WILLMAN: I think that would be reasonable,

15 if we can work out some sort of discovery schedule, and

'

16 I think we will be able to do so.

17 JUDGE CLARK: You see, if you are not able to

18 work it out, you might want to phrase your motion a

19 little differently from what you did a long time ago,

20 too.

21 MR. WILLMAN: I think we'd like to do that,j

22 because it is a dated motion. It is over a year old
|

23 now.'

24 JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

( 25 Well, I think it would help the record if you would
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1 agree at this time to withdraw that motion without

|

2 prejudice to filing a new motion, if you find it

3 necessary.

4 Are you prepared to do that?

5 M R . *w'I L L M A N : That would be fine.

6 I'd like to add that we would want some documents

7 produced at our office, rather than having to go down to

8 the plant itself and looking at documents, but I think

9 we can work something out.
,

10 JUDGE CLARK: Well, you work that out with Mr.

11 Zabel.

(v) 12 You are now withdrawing that motion which was on

13 our docket for discussion this morning?

14 MR. WILLMAN: Yes.

15 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you very much.

16 Before I get to the other motions, I would like for

17 us to have a discussion as to the further steps in this

18 proceeding.

19 We talked a year ago about a hearing program in

20 which we would take certain of the Contentions and

21 dispose of them in August, we would have a hearing on

22 them in August of this year, leaving others until a

23 later date.

24 I wonder if the August date is still practical in

f)s_/ 25 view of the state of the proceeding, and I would like to
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1 have comments on that now, and I'll start with Mr.

2 Goddard.

3 MR. GODDARD: I would probably have to concede,

4 at this point, Judge Clark, that an August hearing date

5 is impractical.

6 The Staff would, however, like to proceed to

7 hearing on whatever remains of Contentions III through

8 VI at some time prior to either the end of the year or,

9 if need be, very early next year.
,

10 In other words, I'd like to bifurcate this hearing

11 to dispose of all issues except the unresolved matters

() 12 under Contentions I and II at an earlier time.

13 Based upon the status of the QA/QC, for want of a

14 better word, developments regarding Contention II and

15 the current status or lack of status of offsite

16 emergency planning, which would, of course, affect

17 Contention I --

18 JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

19 MR. GODDARD: -- it is quite likely that those

20 two Contentions will not be resolved for some time or

21 will not be capable of resolution for some time.

22 As to the additional Contentions, based upon the

23 information which has been provided by the Staff and, in

24 certain instances, by Illinois Power to the Intervenors

O)\_ 25 and a general narrowing of issues with regard to
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1 Contentions III and V, and, if necessary, Contention VI,

2 I think it would be possible for the Board to conduct a

3 short evidentiary hearing, in the event we were not able

4 to completely resolve those Contentions through the

5 negotiation process, with a view to issuing a partial

6 initial decision which might well serve to expedite the

7 ultimate disposition of Contentions I and II and when

8 those two Contentions might be heard.

9 JUDGE CLARK: Mr. Zabel.
.

10 MR. ZABEL: Thank you, your Honor.

11 I was contemplating that when we received the

/ i 12 order.LJ
13 I was reminded of your admonition of the first

14 hearing I attended of the Board's desire to hold its

15 evidentiary hearings late enough in the process to be

16 current, but not so late as to be critical to the

17 schedule date.

18 JUDGE CLARK: Right.

19 MR. ZABEL: In light of that admonition, which

20 is a typical juggling act for the Board to follow, I'm

21 sure, it seems to me, as Mr. Goddard said, Contentions

i 22 III through VI, or what may remain of them, would
!

23 certainly be right for hearing, if not late this year,

24 then early next year, almost irrespective of the

() 25 schedule of the plant. Those are very discreet,
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1 distinct issues.

2 I would add only beyond that, since the possibility

3 of partial resolution among the parties of Contention I

4 only arose today, I had some thoughts that, if any part

5 of, at least, Contention I that is solely the

6 Applicant's obligation -- that is, emergency planning --

7 remains, that, too, could probably go to hearing at the

8 same time as Contentions III to VI.

9 It would be a question of whether anything was left

10 of that Contention and a question of whether we wanted

11 to not only bifurcate Contentions, but bifurcate a

12 specific Contention.(j
13 I think it's discreet enough, even in Contention I,

14 to do that, so my view on scheduling would be to look

15 for whatever evidentiary hearing is necessary on III

16 through VI, on the remnants, and maybe part of

17 Contention I, as Mr. Goddard said, late this year or

18 early next year.

19 JUDGE CLARK: What does the State of Illinois

20 think about that?

21 MR. WILLMAN: Our understanding on Contention

22 III, which is the control room Contention, is that the

23 Staff has not completed its review, and I question

24 whether that review will be complete by the end of the

() 25 year -- maybe Mr. Goddard can answer that -- but in
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1 general, we don't have any problem with a bifurcated

2 hearing.

3 I would prefer that it would be early next year

4 rather than this year because of the delay that we've

5 experienced in the past, but in principle, we have no

6 problem with the bifurcated hearing.

7 JUDGE PARIS: Mr. Goddard, is it correct that ;

8 the Staff has not completed its review on the control

9 room matter?

10 MR. GODDARD: A complete audit of the control

11 room has not been completed, and we cannot forecast a

('Ms ,) 12 date when it would be.

13 However, based on the, I believe, 10 subparts of

14 Contention VI, we feel that, by far, the majority of

15 those could be resolved without regard to the final

16 control room audit.

17 If it turns out that there are a few subparts of

18 that Contention which could not be handled at a late

19 1983 or early 1984 hearing, Staff would not oppose

20 carrying those over until the final hearings.

21 What we're looking for, from a broad standpoint, is

22 getting rid of as much extraneous matter as possible

23 prior to the litigation, which is likely to resolve

24 around Contentions I and II, at a much later date.

() 25 JUDGE CLARK: Miss Foy.
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1 MS. F0Y: I would agree with the schedule plan.

2 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

3 Judge Paris, do you have some questions that you

4 would like to ask at this time?

5 JUDGE PARIS: I'd like to ask Mr. Goddard one

6 more question.

7 Is it your understanding that the push back on the

8 fuel loading date will affect FEMA's schedule in respect

9 to working on the emergency plan for Clinton or do you

10 know?

11 MR. GODDARD: If I may have a moment, Judge

() 12 Paris.

13 JUDGE PARIS: For the record, perhaps I should

14 say that FEMA is the acronym for the Federal Emergency
;

15 Management Agency.

16 MR. GODDARD: I want to be very careful, in

17 answering your question, that I don't say anything to be

18 construed as speaking either for FEMA or for the

19 Illinois Emergency Services Disaster Agency.

20 I think it is a fair assumption or an expectation

that the dely in the fuel load date may cause each of

22 those agencies to realign their internal priorities as

23 to the status of the planning and the review for the

24 Clinton Station.

) 25 I don't know what decision will be made by either
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1 of those agencies.

2 JUDGE PARIS. Okay. Thank you.

3 JUDGE CLAKK: Any more questions?

4 JUDGE PARIS: No.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Quest' ions?

6 JUDGE FERGUSON: No.
,

7 JUDGE CLARK: Well, the Board will take under

8 consideration moving the date of the partial hearing

9 from August until a later date, and we'll have to look
,

10 at our own schedules, too, and we will notify you

11 concerning that after we have reached a decision.

() 12 Now, there remains --

13 MR. ZABEL: Judge Clark.

14 JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

15 MR. ZABEL: If I may, in connection with that,

16 the scheduling question, we also have pending, as your

17 Honor, I'm sure, recalls, a motion as to the location of

18 the hearings.

19 JUDGE CLARK: Yes. I'm going to come to the

20 motions in a few minutes.

21 MR. ZABEL: Sorry. My apology, your Honor.

22 JUDGE CLARK: We have a motion, with regard to

23 the evidentiary hearing, that the evidentiary hearing be

24 held in Clinton, Illinois, instead of Champaign, and

i n
; v 25 there have been a number of pleadings with regard to
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1 that motion.

2 The Board has not specifically, on the record,

3 answered that motion, and the Board has had, we think, a

4 good reason for not answering that.

5 We are sympathetic with the desire of the Applicant

6 to have at least a part of the hearing in Clinton, and

7 we feel, however, that it would be a mistake for us tc

8 firm that up at this time when the time of the hearing

9 is so far in the future.
.

10 I believe I can say that a consensus of the Board

11 is that at least a portion of the hearing should be held

() 12 in Clinton, and we wish to survey the possibilities of

13 doing that.

14 We haven't had so far any requests for a limited

15 appearance, but there may be, when the hearing is

16 announced, people who wish to make a limited appearance,

17 who would find it better to make a limited appearance in

18 Clinton, and we certainly will take that into

19 consideration.

20 When we get closer to the time for hearing, then we

21 would like to deal with this motion.

22 Again, for the sake of housekeeping, more than
.

23 anything else, I'd appreciate it if you would withdraw

24 this motion without prejudice to renewing it at an

() 25 appropriate time when we are closer to a hearing.

.
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1 MR. ZABEL: Your Honor, in light of the

2 positive feedback we may. want to have part of the

3 hearing in Clinton and part in.different places, I'd be

4 happy to withdraw it without prejudice.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

6 That motion is withdrawn.
,

7 MS. F0Y: Judge Clark, I was wondering if you ;
f

8 were referring to the first small hearing we might be

9 having at the end of this year or are you talking about
,

10 the more extensive hearing that we're talking about like

11 several years, you know, down the road 7

() 12 JUDGE CLARK: Well, we're talking about two

13 hearings, and normally we have limited appearances at

14 the first hearing. There might be an opportunity for it

15 again at the second hearing, but we were thinking we

16 would try to establish, when we get close to the hearing

| 17 date and decide what we're going to hear, to see how

'

18 many days of hearing we think it's going to be.

19 MS. F0Y: Okay. >Thank you.

20 JUDGE CLARK: Then we can talk about a portion

21 of the time here and there; but we can't really do that

I 22 until we have a better fix on which Contentions we're

1
23 going 'o hold hearings on and try to arrive at some ideat

24 of how long the hearing is going to be.

25 MS. F0Y:/ I was wondering, because I got the

i

.I
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1 impression that the first hearing we have will be

2 probably just a short one, and that's why I was

3 wondering.

4 JUDGE CLARK: Well, we will see how that comes

5 out and then we will discuss the program at an

6 appropriate time in advance of the hearing.

7 MS F0Y: Okay. Thank you.

8 JUDGE CLARK: You are welcome.

9 The next item has to do with Contention VI, and

10 Contention VI reads as follows:

11 " General Electric recently announced that it will

() 12 withdraw from the nuclear hardware market. The effects

13 of this withdrawal have not been considered by the

14 Applicant nor the Staff. This withdrawal is especially

15 germane in light of Applicant's lack of experience in

16 operating nuclear plants and its future needs relative

17 to plant servicing and design modifications mandated by

18 present and future Commission regulations and orders."

19 In support of this proposed Contentic;., Prairie

20 Alliance submitted a copy of a page from a publication
i

21 entitled " Electric Week." There is a headline reading,'

22 quote, "G. E. bows out of nuclear hardware market.

23 Westinghouse will stick," end quote.

24 I have that document before me here. There it is.

25 Now, it is a common practice, both in newspapers

|
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1 and magazines, to have an eye-catching line at the top

2 of the article which will direct people to read the

3 article; and if we look at this particular page of

4 Electrical Week, we find some alleged quotations from GE

5 executives with regard to this matter, and I will read

6 some of that to you. .

7 " Speaking before 300 security analysts and news
!

8 people in New York last Tuesday" -- and that date was

9 December 8, 1981 - "last Tuesday, GE chairman and chief
,

10 executive officer John Welch said, 'Our planning does

11 not anticipate any new nuclear plant orders.' He said GE

() 12 would work off its backlogs and remain in the nuclear

13 fuel and nuclear servicing businesses where he expects

14 to turn a profit. 'If we were starting over again, we

15 would not enter this business,' Welch told his attentive

16 audience. Following the formal presentation, GE

17 executive vice-president and power systems section

18 executive Herman Hill said he expects to ship out the

19 last of the nuclear plants now on order by the end of

20 1986. Contacted later, Hill said this would include the

21 oversea orders for which GE is presently competing, but

22 extended his deadline to 1986 or in that time frame. He

23 does not foresee any U. S. nuclear plant ordere being

24 placed in the next decade and he does not know whether

) 25 the nuclear option in the United States will be revived
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1 after that. He said he will keep an engineering staff

2 together for the servicing activity, hinting that this

3 could be a nucleus for an expansion of GE if things" --

4 "GE sees things different in the future."

5 Now, in spite of the headline, I would like to

6 point out that both spokesmen for GE are said to have

7 said GE does not anticipate any new plant orders. It

8 doesn't say that if people came and ordered, they

9 wouldn't fill those order. It just says, "We don't

10 think anybody else is going to ask us and we are going

11 to conduct ourselves accordingly."

() 12 Therefore, it does not appear that GE is bowing out'

13 of the nuclear hardware market.

14 It simply says that they are recognizing the fact

15 that they do not expect any new customers in the near

16 future, and if that is to be the case, they, naturally,

17 would reduce the number of employees which they would

18 have to service those plants which they have already

19 built.

20 In response to the proposed Contention, Applicants,

21 by letter dated April the 12th, forwarded a cop? of a

22 letter dated April the 2nd, 1982, from Mr. W. H.

23 Bruggeman -- is that the correct pronunciation,

24 Bruggeman -- vice-president of General Electric to,

A
\s / 25 Leonard J. Koch -- is that correct?
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1 MR. ZABEL: He pronounces it as in the drink,

2 Coke.

3 JUDGE CLARK: Cough?

4 MR. ZABEL: Coke, like the beverage.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Coke.

6 -- Mr. Leonard J. Koch, president of IP.

7 In part, the letter states as follows:

8 "In summary, General Electric Company has no

9 expectation of abandoning the nuclear business.
,

10 Illinois Power Company and other boiling water reactor

11 owners can look forward to the continuing support and

() 12 expertise of the General Electric Company."

13 Actually, this letter is in complete agreement with

14 the statements which were purported to have been made by

15 the General Electric personnel in the text of the

16 article in Electrical Week.

17 So the eye-catching type title of "GE bows out of

18 the nuclear market," which begins the article, is

19 clearly misleading.

20 As we noted in this Board's memorandum and order of

! 21 November the 10th, 1982, in both a telephone conference

22 on June the 4th, 1982, and in Prairie Alliance's brief

23 in support of the supplemental Contentions, dated April

24 12, 1982, Prairie Alliance expressed a concern that

( 25 General Electric might not make available in the future

!
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1 services to make design modifications mandated by

2 present or future Commission regulations or orders.

3 Prairie Alliance expressed willingness to withdraw

4 this Contention, which was allowed, and renumbered as

5 Contention VI, if Prairie Alliance's concern on this

6 point was met.

7 On December the 17th, 1982, Illinois Power sent to

8 each party and to each member of the Board an affidavit

9 dated December the 13th, 1982, signed by W. H.
,

10 Bruggeman, vice-president and general manager of the

11 nuclear energy business operations of the General

12 Electric Company.

13 This affidavit asserts that GE has no expectation

14 of abandoning the nuclear business. It will continue to

15 furnish support and expertise to Illinois Power and

16 ceners of boiling water reactors and will be available

17 to Illinois Power to make hardware and other design

18 modifications which may be required by present or future

19 rules or regulations of the Nuclear Regulatory

| 20 Commission.

21 Although this affidavit fully met the concern

22 expressed by Prairie Alliance, it did not see fit to

23 withdraw its Contention VI as it had agreed to do.

24 Illinois Power filed a motion for summary

25 disposition of Prairie Alliance's Contention VI dated
|

|
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1 January the 17th, 1983.

2 Off the record.

3 (There followed a discussion outside the

4 record.)

5 JUDGE CLARK: On the record again.

6 The motion summarizes the background facts and

7 urges that the December 13, 1982, affidavit answers i

8 Prairie Alliance's arguments and apparently left no

9 issue of fact to be heard.
,

10 On February the 8th,1983, the Staff filed a

11 pleading supporting the motion for summary disposition

() 12 of Prairie Alliance's Contention VI.

13 Attached to the Staff's pleading was an affidavit

14 by Harvey Abelson, Licensed Project Manager, Licensing

15 Branch 2, Division of Licensing, Office of Nuclear

16 Reactor Regulation, (NRR).

17 Mr. Abelson is responsible for the overall safety

18 and environmental project management in regard to the

19 operating license application for the Clinton Power

20 Station.

21 The affidavit of Mr. Abelson is to the effect that,

22 after study of the Bruggeman affidavit on December the

23 13th, 1982, and after discussion with colleagues, Mr.

24 Abelson neither personally knows nor has found any other

( 25 person who knows of facts contrary to those stated in

|
.
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1 the Bruggeman affidavit.

2 As far as the record shows, from the date of the

3 Board's memorandum and order of November 10, 1982,

4 served on the 12th of November, until the receipt of

5 Illinois Power's letter of December the 17th, 1982,

6 Prairie Alliance made no attempt to seek factual support

7 for its Contention VI.

8 On January the 5th, 1982, Prairie Alliance filed a

9 motion to compel production of documents on the

10 Applicant.

11 On January 28th, 1983, Prairie Alliance filed a

() 12 request for production of documents in the possession of

13 Illinois Power.

14 Broadly, these requests sought to obtain

15 contractual relationships between Illinois Power and

16 General Electric.

17 On March the 3rd, 1983, Prairie Alliance filed an

18 affidavit stating that Prairie Alliance cannot present

19 by affidavit facts essential to justify opposition to

| 20 Illinois Power's motion for summary disposition of
i

'

21 Prairie Alliance's Contention VI. Allegedly, this is

22 due to failure to obtain discovery on Illinois Power.

23 Prairie Alliance's answer in opposition to

24 Applicant's motion for summary disposition of Contention

O)(_, 25 VI, dated February the 3rd, 1983, has attached thereto a
;
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1 statement of alleged material facts to which there is a.

2 genuine issue of facts, and the first alleged issue is

3 as follows:
,

4 "1. General Electric has announced it will no

5 longer manufacture or supply major nuclear components."

6 The remaining three statements are all dependent on

7 the accuracy of the first Contention; that is, that

| 8 General Electric had made that announcement.

9 If General Electric did not make that announcement,
,

10 the other Contentions fall, because they are dependent

11 upon that fact.

() 12 There is not the slightest evidence that General

13 Electric ever made any such announcement.

14 As I have reviewed with you, the statements of

15 General Electric representatives who were quoted in the

16 newspaper article, Electric Week, do not support thati

17 allegation.

18 Furthermore, the Staff, in supporting the motion,

19 included an affidavit of Mr. Harvey Abelson in which he

20 states that he has no knowledge and has been able to

21 find no one having such knowledge of any such
|

22 announcement.

23 While such affidavit strengthens Applicant's

24 position, if such an announcement had been made, we

( 25 would have expected Mr. Abelson to have been aware of
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1 it, so that his lack of knowledge does have value which

2 we must consider as evidentiary.

3 In order to support the allegation of fact that

4 Prairie Alliance sought discovery from Applicants,

5 quote, "Because all of the facts and documents related

6 to the Contention remain in the possession of the

7 Applicants" -- now, this was the basis for their desire

8 to make discovery on the Applicants -- the Board does

9 not agree with that statement.
,

10 If General Electric decided not to continue in the

11 business, and if they had made that announcement,

() 12 certainly all of the documents wouldn't be in the

13 control of the Applicants, but it would have been

14 broadcast throughout the industry, and certainly the

15 people who are interested in the Staff of the Nuclear

16 Regulatory Commission would also have known or have

17 heard of any such announcement.

18 So we have a situation where the Intervenor would

19 like to go through the files of the Applicant to see

20 whether or not there isn't such an announcement there,

21 and yet they have before them an affidavit by a

22 qualified representative of General Electric that they

23 have never made any such announcement and they have an

24 affidavit by a member of the Staff that, after careful

(''NA ,/ 25 inquiry and the basis of his own knowledge, he can finds
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|

1 no one else who ever heard of such an announcement.

2 I would like to read to you Mr. Bruggeman's

3 affidavit, in part.

4 After giving his position and being duly sworn, Mr.

5 Bruggeman states that General Electric Company has no

6 expectations of abandoning t'he nuclear business.

7 General Electric Comoany will continue to furnish

8 support and expertise to Illinois Power Company and

9 other owners of boiling water reactors. General

10 Electric Company is aggressively and diligently

11 satisfying its obligations under existing nuclear steam

() 12 supply contracts, including the nuclear steam supply(
13 contract with Illinois Power Company for Clinton Power

14 Station, Unit 1.

15 General Electric Company views the fuel and service

16 needs of nuclear plants as sensible business

|
17 opportunities. General Electric will aggressively

18 pursue these opportunities.
|

19 General Electric Company is not discontinuing

20 hardware design modifications. General Electric Company
l
i 21 services will be available in the future to Illinois

22 Power Company to make hardware and other design

23 modifications which may be required by present or future

24 rules or regulations of the Nuclear Regulatory

() 25 Commission.

|
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1 General Electric Company recognizes that the

2 opportunities for the sale of new nuclear steam supply

3 systems are presently limited. General Electric Company

4 is actively pursuing appropriate opportunities as such

5 opportunities emerge.

6 So then we have an affidavit which covers every

7 point which is raised by the Intervenors and negatives

8 the assertions by the Intervenors.

9 The Intervenors, in their affidavit, have said that

10 they have no facts with which to combat this affidavit.

11 So the Board holds that there is no material fact

() 12 which should be heard at our hearing because there is no

13 dispute as to an actual matter of material fact.

14 Accordingly, the motion of the Applicants to remove

15 Contention VI from this proceeding is granted.

16 It is now a little after 10:00 o' clock and we will

17 take a -- may I speak to the reporter off the record

18 just a moment.

19 (There followed a discussion outside the

20 record.)

21 JUDGE CLARK: Back on the record.

22 We will take a 15-minute recess.

23 (Whereupon a recess was had, after which

24 the hearing was resumed as follows:)

25 JUDGE CLARK: Back on the record.
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1 I am under the impression that we've disposed of

2 all pending matters, but if there are any pending

3 matters which we have overlooked, rulings which the

4 Board should make that we have not made, I would ask the

5 parties to call our attention to those matters at this

6 time.

7 MS. F0Y: Judge Clark.

8 JUDGE CLARK: Miss Foy.

9 MS. F0Y: Can you hear me all right?

10 JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

11 MS. F0Y: I want to make a few comments about

() 12 our contention about the GE withdrawal from the market,

13 if that would be possible.

14 JUDGE CLARK: You want to make some comments?

15 MS. F0Y: Yes.

16 JUDGE CLARK: Go ahead.
i

17 MS. F0Y: Okay. First of all, Prairie Alliance

18 would like to go on the record as stating we have not

| 19 had a chance to have the discovery that we had hoped

20 for, and we were not able to respond prior to the ruling

21 that was given.

22 I personally wanted to make a clarification to you

23 about your comment about our previous willingness to

24 drop the Contention based on an adequate affidavit.

O)(_s 25 That is certainly true. We had talked with Mr.
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1 Goddard about our willingness to drop the Contention, if

2 we had an affidavit assuring us of continuing GE

3 support.

4 Our concern, when we got the affidavit, was its

5 general nature, and that is why we had hoped to clarify

6 some -- the exact, shall we say, scope of General

7 Electric's future support through discovery.

8 The kind of discovery we thought would be

9 appropriate would be correspondence between General

10 Electric and Illinois Power and contracts.

11 Not being that familiar with this kind of

() 12 situation, in our request for production of documents,

13 we requested those items that we thought might clarify

14 the affidavit.

15 Since we haven't been allowed to look at those

16 documents, that is why we hadn't decided to drop the

17 Contention prior.

18 We wanted to make it clear our willingness to be

19 reasonable, shall we say.

20 Another comment I want to make is, when you were

21 reading the quotes from Electrical Week and you were

22 interpreting the General Electric market status, there

23 is a quote here that says, " General Electric will keep

24 an engineering staff together for future servicing

25 activity."
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1 This was one of our concerns. Everyone, as a

2 general piece of knowledge, knows the nuclear market is

3 declining; and they did say that they would keep staff

4 together for servicing.

5 In the affidavit, Mr. Bruggeman also mentions, "We

6 will be willing to provide service," but at one point he

7 mentions, "We consider servicing a good business

8 activity."

9 Our concerns were to what level will they service,
,

10 and if it ceases to become good business activity, will

11 that affect their willingness to continue service?

() 12 So since most of this seemed rather general, we

13 were looking for more specificity; and I just wanted to

14 ' put those comments on the record.

15 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you very much for your

16 comments.

17 I might say to you that it is a general business

18 practice when an activity in a corporation -- many

19 activities become a lower level activity, so that they

20 have to decrease the number of employees assigned to

21 that activity, usually these are valuable employees, and

22 they are transferred to other activities within the

23 corporation, and at any time when their services are

24 needed, they are transferred back to that group for the
Ot(,,) 25 purposes of performing the needed service. They can't
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1 keep them around idle, but they do find other jobs for

2 them within the organization. This is a common

3 practice.

4 MS. F0Y: Okay. Thank you.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Any other comments?

6 MR. ZABEL: Nothing, your Honor.

7 JUDGE CLARK: Mr. Zabel has invited the Board --

8 MR. MINOR: Judge Clark, may I make a comment

9 on that?
,

10 JUDGE CLARK: Go ahead.

11 MR. MINOR: Will you permit me to make a

12 comment on that?

13 JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

14 MR. MINOR: I acknowledge what you say is often

15 true, but I don't believe you can say that's true at

16 General Electric, and particularly in this situation, so

17 although you are stating that as a general corporate
1

! 18 practice, I don't believe it necessarily pertains to

19 this situation.

|
| 20 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

21 JUDGE FERGUSON: Would you be kind enough to

22 share with the Board, sir, your basis for what you have
,

23 just said?

24 MR. MINOR: Yes. Since I've worked for General
t' h

! V. 25 Electric for 16 years, I'm familiar with their evolution

{
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1 in this industry and the fact that many of their good

2 reople are actually leaving that industry and going

3 elsewhere, not only to other nuclear businesses, but

4 forming their own businesses outside of GE and also

5 leaving to go back to other academic pursuits and things

6 of that nature.

7 The fact is you may not have the nucleus of the

8 best people, that was implied by the Judge, at some

9 future date in time.
,

10 JUDGE FERGUSON: Are you disputing or not the

11 affidavit statement made by Bruggeman that the General

12 Electric Company will make services available in the

13 future to Illinois Power Company and those services will

14 be adequate to make design modifications which may be

15 required by future or present rules of the Commission?

16 MR. MINOR: I didn't mean to dispute that

17 directly.
|

18 I was merely pointing out that there is an

19 uncertainty in that quotation.

20 The uncertainty would be whether those services

21 would even be provided by GE in the future.

22 It may be that GE would go out and hire those

23 services from somebody else if they didn't feel they had

24 the critical mass within their own organization to

25 perform that function.
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1 There is definitely an uncertainty with regard to

2 GE in the future of the nuclear business, and this -- I

3 was trying to shed some light on the comment the Judge

4 made specifically with respect to General Electric.

5 I was not trying to necessarily refute the specific

6 words of Mr. Bruggeman's affidavit. However, I wanted

7 to point out the uncertainty.

8 MS. F0Y: Judge Clark, I wondered if I could

9 make a comment?
.

10 I have a question that you might be able to answer.

11 The reason we were asking for the contracts is

()'

12 because we -- I didn't think one person's affidavit

13 necessarily bound General Electric to the -- to their

14 future servicing. yta know, responsibilities, and maybe

15 you could tell me if that affidavit has, in fact; that

16 is, General Electric's promise that they will, in fact,
t'

17 service the plant.

18 JUDGE CLARK: I so understand the affidavit.

19 MS. F0Y: Okay. I didn't know that one -- one

20 person's affidavit carried that much weight; and even

21 though, when you refer to this article, there may be a

22 question of GE generally bowing out, we used this to

23 bring up the question of their unstable situation in the

24 nuclear hardware market, putting in question their

() 25 servicing ability, so if that affidavit is their -- if

| SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LT].
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1 that's a legal statement of future servicing, you know,

2 contract, then that's what I wanted to know.

3 That is why we were, in fact, looking for

4 contracts. We wanted to know what they were legally

5 bound to.

6 JUDGE CLARK: Well, we were giving full

7 credence to the affidavit,

8 I might remark to you that -- recognizing the fact

9 that you are laymen and not lawyers, I didn't mention
,

10 the fact that a newspaper or magazine article is not

|
evidence, and if we had a hearing and you attempted to11

FM
'g ) 12 introduce that article into evidence, it would be

13 refused.

14 The affidavit is something which has been sworn to

15 and presumably he could go on the stand and swear to the

16 same thing, but the newspaper article, while it raised

17 your suspicions, is not evidence which you would be able

18 to be permitted to use in any hearing.

19 MS. F0Y: Well, all right.

20 This is a journal. I didn't know if that made any

21 difference.

22 JUDGE CLARK: Will, it's the same thing.

23 MS. F0Y: Okay.

24 JUDGE CLARK: It is not a document under oath.

( 25 MS. F0Y: Okay, I understand.
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1 Thank you.'

2 JUDGE CLARK: So that while we recognize that

3 it raised your suspicions and I recognize your concern,

4 and we are concerned with it, too, but we feel that you

5 have not presented any tangible facts which you could

6 put into evidence to support your concern; and it is a

7 rule that you cannot have a hearing based on suspicions

8 of what you think might happen.

9 Now, it's certainly true that there are all kinds

10 of uncertainties in the future.

11 If General Electric were busy today building power

()'

12 plants for others, there would still be some question as

13 to whether they would have the people to meet the,

!

| 14 demands of their present plants; but we have to depend
!

15 on them to do that. That's all we can do.

16 We might be struck by a hurricane here tomorrow,

17 but we can't do anything about that.

18 MS. F0Y: All right. I was wondering if, in

19 the future, General Electric has some sort of change --

20 some sort of problem in their corporation that would

21 affect their future servicing of the Clinton plant,

22 would Prairie Alliance be able to -- is this issue

23 possibly -- possible to be resumed if new information

24 becomes available about some problem within their
O,

' V 25 company?
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1 JUDGE CLARK: You mean that if some information

2 which you could present in the form of true evidence

3 might raise e similar question in the future, would we

4 allow you to raise it? Is that your question?

5 MS. F0Y: Yes, that is.

6 JUDGE PARIS You are talking about while this

7 proceeding is still .s:ng on; is that right?

8 JUDGE CLARK: I understand that.

9 MS. F0Y: Yes. If, in the next two years,
,

'

10 something happened to General Electric, would -- would

11 that be -- if we had hard evidentiary facts about some

() 12 problem within them, would we be able to at least bring

13 that up?

14 JUDGE CLARK: You certainly would have a chance

15 to bring it up, and if we felt that you had a concern

16 which would justify a hearing, we would certainly give
,

17 you a chance at a hearing.

18 MS. F0Y: Okay. Thank you very much.

19 JUDGE CLARK: You are entirely welcome.

20 JUDGE FERGUSON: I was interrupted by Miss Foy.

21 I had not finished my line of questioning.

,
22 I would like to continue that.

t

23 JUDGE CLARK: By all means.

24 MS. F0Y: I'm sorry. I thought you were

[ )),

(_ 25 finished.i
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1 JUDGE FERGUSON: Sir, let me address you by

2 your name. Give it to me again, please.

3 MR. MINOR: My name is Gregory Minor.

4 JUDGE FERGUSON: Mr. Minor, you indicated that

5 if, in fact, GE could not provide services with their

6 staff, they may subcontract the work to someone else who

7 may be qualified to do it; is that a correct

8 chacterization of what you said?

9 MR. MINOR: Yes.
.

10 I was trying more to state that some unknown

11 quantity or unknown entity in the future -- you're
,

() 12 talking about a plant that is going to run for 40 years

13 starting in, I think the present estimate is, 1986.

14 Well, that's the year GE stops or effectively

15 finishes their backlog, according to the statement in

16 the affidavit, so 40 years after that, you are up to

17 2026, and who knows what company efforts GE may have

18 continuing at that time or who they may go to to try to

19 supplement it.

20 JUDGE FERGUSON: Well, let's assume that they

21 do, in fact, go to another company.

22 Is it your experience that that is uncommon and

23 unacceptable?

24 MR. MINOR: Not necessarily uncommon.

25 The question of unacceptability is a different
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1 issue.

2 We're dealing with a plant that is new. You are

3 dealing with one of the first of the line of BWR 6

4 designs that have not had a field operating experience

5 of any extent, and, therefore, you aren't certain what

6 problems you are going to encounter in the future.

7 It is a complex device, it is a very long-evolved

8 design, and much of the history of that design is tied

9 up in peoples' past knowledge and recollections, people

10 who won't be there in the future, and, therefore, when

11 you go to correct errors in the future, to make

() 12 modifications of those systems that may be mandated by

13 the NRC, or just to service and maintain some of the

14 older systems -- I'm saying older. Now I'm looking at --

15 looking at it 20, 30 years in the future -- you won't

16 have the same knowledge and experience base you have

17 today, and Mr. Bruggeman's affidavit won't bring that

18 back.

19 JUDGE FERGUSON: You indicated that you had

20 been an employee for the company for, was it -- 15

21 years, I think you said?

22 MR. MINOR: 16 years.

23 JUDGE FERGUSON: 16 years.

24 Based on that experience, do you have any evidence

s ,/ 25 to lead you to believe that if, in fact, the company
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1 says it will provide service, that it will not do so on

2 a basis that one could depend upon so far as its quality

3 and character is concerned?

4 MR. MINOR: No, I have no direct evidence of

5 that, except that during the period I was there and

6 during the period up to the last, let's say, four or

7 five years, the nuclear industry was on a growth trend,

8 and all of GE's emphasis was focused on increasing its

9 prominence and presence in the nuclear industry, and

10 since then, all of their emphasis has been toward, let's

11 say, decreasing their presence in the nuclear industry.

() 12 They are not aggressively pursuing the orders the way

13 they did before, they have a very limited marketing

14 effort, they have greatly reduced their staff in recent

15 periods, enly altered by the effect of the TMI accident,

16 the necessity to build up people again to try and make

17 repairs and changes necessitated by the TMI accident.

18 Since then, they have started on a decline again in

| 19 personnel.

20 Now, the trend is definitely toward a lower

21 presence and a lower profile in this industry in the

22 future for General Electric.

23 JUDGE FERGUSON: My question goes more to the

24 character of the company.

() 25 MR. MINOR: I believe I stated no, I have no
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1 direct evidence. |

2 JUDGE FERGUSON: Very good.

3 Thank you.

4 JUDGE CLARK: Mr. Minor, I'd like to ask you a

5 question.

6 You think that your concern with these

7 uncertainties is sufficiently great to justify refusing

8 an operating license?

9 MR. MINOR: Judge, I don't think I stated that
,

10 anywhere. I certainly didn't imply that.

11 I was only bringing it up in regard to the

() 12 possibility of trying this issue to see if there was

13 substance in this issue sufficient to warrant --

14 JUDGE CLARK: Isn't the possibility that the

15 designers of any nuclear plant or any other plant that's

16 going to operate for 20 or 30 years might die before the

17 thing occurred that made a change necessary? Isn't that

18 a risk that we always run, that a person won't be

19 available who designed it originally when the time comes
|
| 20 when you want to change the design?

21 MR. MINOR: Well, it certainly is a
i

22 possibility; and having worked on some of the complex

23 and intricate systems that are going to control this
|

24 plant, I think that's a real concern.

) 25 The people that are going to maintain this plant in

|
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1 the future haven't been born yet. They won't have the

2 base of knowledge that people that put it together had

3 the first time.

4 JUDGE CLARK: Thank you very much.

5 Are there any other comments?

6 JUDGE PARIS: I want to ask Mr. Minor a

7 question.

8 Mr. Minor, are there any BWR 6's in operation now;

9 do you know?
,

10 MR. MINOR: To my knowledge, I believe there's

11 one plant that has been licensed. Whether it's actually

() 12 operating, I don't know. Grand Gulf is the name of the

13 plant.

14 JUDGE PARIS: Okay. Thank you.

15 MR. MINOR: Probably the NRC can straighten

16 that issue out, if it's of importance.

17 MR. ABELSON: There's a plant operating in

18 Taiwan, Kaohsiung, a BWR 6, Mark 3.

19 Grand Gulf has been licensed, but I do not believe

20 it's operating at the present time.

21 JUDGE PARIS: I didn't catch the name of the

22 plant the firs'. time.

23 MR. ABELMAN: K-a-o-h-s-i-u-n-g.

24 JUDGE CLARK: Are there any other comments?

() 25 (No response.)
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1 JUDGE CLARK: Mr. Zabel, I believe that you

2 have invited the Board and the representatives of the

3 other parties to see the plant today; is that correct?

4 MR. ZABEL: That's correct, your Honor.

5 JUDGE CLARK: Would it be well to schedule that

6 leaving here after lunch?

7 MR. ZABEL: I think that would be the best.

8 I don't know what the Board or other people who are

9 going on the tour's travel plans are, but I think you
,

10 might want to be dressed more comfortably for the tour;

11 and it possibly was-the plan to have those who were

12 going to meet at the visitors center at Clinton at

13 whatever time proved appropriate when this hearing

14 ended; certainly after, I would say, 1:00 o' clock, if
.

15 that would be convenient. uWe will be ready for the tour

16 at that time. We could be ready some other time.
s

17 JUDGE PARIS: How long do you anticipate that

18 we will be touring the site after we get started?

19 MR. ZABEL: Well, from the time we gather at --

20 excuse me.

21 JUDGE PARIS: The visitors center.

22 MR. ZABEL: I would say part of it depends on , -

23 questions or anything specific any of the Board might' , s

24 .want to see, b t,we would estimate about an ~
-

1|

| C 25 hour-and-a-half or an hour-ind-threeyquarter tour.
,

'

.: .s
' ;>

,

t
'

ss
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1 Part of our concern on timing, for the convenience
~

2, of the Board, is not to catch the traffic rush of the

3 crew shift at Clinton coming out, which, if my

4 recollection is correct, is 4: 30, so if we were aiming --

'5 if the tour started at like 1: 30, those who are driving

6 back to Champaign, for instance, either when it was over

7 . to' catch a plane or whatever, would not get caught is

8 what is a rather intense, although of short duratior.,

.9 traffic flow out of the plant.
,

,

'

JUDGE PARIS: How long does it take to drive
- 10. ,g ,

I ' ' '

11, L out there?
'

- -

Q2 MR. ZABEL: What would you say?-

'13 N' A VOICE: An hour, an hour-and-a-quarter.v -

14'~' MR. ZABEL: About an hour-and-a-quarter, I''

15 would ' estimate.
w

,' 16 i ( Our people know the road and probably do it a'
s-

,; ,

''
77 1 little faster, but I think it's about an

,

18 hour-and-a-quarter from here.-

'

19 JUDGE PARIS: If we started at 2:00, do you

20 think we could beat the shift change?

21 JUDGE CLARK: If we were there at 2:00 o' clock?s ,

1.
'' 2N- ', MR. ZABEL: I think, if everyone were there and

C%
~ 2$ " geady to,take the tour at 2:00, we could beat that shift

,,
',. .

(: \
~\

,

24 ~ ' change.*

,s ,o-
'

? ,', 2 5
.

JUDGE CLARK: Are the representatives of the'-

3 s. m

| N, N
'

.

s ..

% - . ,
'

1tit
- s ,,

;
' ''
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~ .
, .

1 Staff going on this tour?

2 MR. GODDARD: Yes, we are.., .

3 JUDGE CLARK: Is 2:00 o' clock satisfactory to
,

. ,,

. . ' 4 I you?^

5 MR.' GODDARD: Yes, sir, it is.
,

6 JUDGE CLARK: How about the Intervenors: Arei

7 you going?

8 MS. F0Y: We are still debating that; but 2:00

9 o' clock will be fine.
.

10 . JUDGE CLARK: How about you, sir?
/ '

Mp.NILLMAN: We are going, and 2:00 o' clock or11

I12' earlier will be fine.

13 JUDGE CLARK: Well, then we will plan to meet

14 at your information center at 2:00 o' clock.

15 Perhaps someone can give us a little map to direct
,a . , .

16 us to how to reach there. We have a car.
~

1

' '.s,

| 17 MR ZABEL: You do have a car, your Honor?

18 JUDGE CLtRK: We do have a car.

19 ,/ MR. ZABEL: I can get a map for you.,

20 -! J,UDGE CLARK: If there's no further business

21 before this meeting, we will adjourn the meeting and

22 then you can give us some instructions for reaching the

23 plant.
.

!
~

24 JUDGE PARIS: Miss Foy, do you need a map?

O' '

u 25 MS. F0Y: No.

i

L .

' 1 SONNTAG REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.
L.



437

O
1 JUDGE PARIS: Okay. Mr. Willman, do you need a

2 map?

3 MR. WILLMAN: Yes, we do.

4 JUDGE CLARK: This conference is here and now

5 adjourned.

6 (Which were all the proceedings had at the

7 hearing of the above-entitled matter at

8 the time and place aforesaid.)

9
.
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